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From: INFOCNTR (PHMSA)
To: Dodd, Alice (PHMSA); Hazmat Interps
Subject: FW: Interpretation Request for 49 CFR 173.309(c)
Date: Thursday, July 1, 2021 12:29:09 PM


Good afternoon Alice,


Please see the request for interpretation below. Please contact our office with any questions.


Thank you,


Sarah (HMIC)


From: Shugarman, Blake M. <Blake.M.Shugarman@ul.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, June 30, 2021 12:18 PM
To: INFOCNTR (PHMSA) <INFOCNTR.INFOCNTR@dot.gov>
Subject: Interpretation Request for 49 CFR 173.309(c)


CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the Department of Transportation (DOT). Do not click on links or
open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.


Good day-


I’m responsible for writing new requirements, such as UL 2166P (select digital view to create an
account), for products for safety toward Certification by UL.


I have a question regarding the following information for fire extinguishers installed as part of a fire
suppression system and would like an interpretation. 


With reference to 49 CFR 173.309(c), can plastic pipe with fitting assemblies with fusion or
mechanical joints be utilized as non-specification cylinders provided compliance with 49 CFR
173.309(c) is maintained?


Should you have any questions or comments, please contact me.


Very truly yours,


--
Blake M. Shugarman (he, him, his)
Principal Engineer - Circuit Integrity Systems, 
Fire Extinguishers, Foam & Equipment, 
Special Hazard Fire Suppression
Distinguished Member of Technical Staff
--------------------------------------------------
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U.S. Department                                         
of Transportation     


Pipeline and Hazardous  
Materials Safety  
Administration 


1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE 
Washington, DC  20590  


 
 
July 26, 2022 
 
Mr. Blake Shugarman 
UL LLC  
333 Pfingsten Road 
Northbrook, IL  60062 
 
Reference No. 21-0069 
 
Dear Mr. Shugarman: 
 
This letter is in response to your June 30, 2021, email and subsequent phone conversations with a 
member of my staff requesting clarification of the Hazardous Materials Regulations (HMR; 49 
CFR Parts 171-180) applicable to fire extinguisher specifications.  Specifically, you ask whether 
a plastic pipe—with fitting assemblies that have fusion or mechanical joints—can be used as a 
non-specification cylinder in compliance with the requirements of § 173.309(c).  The product in 
question is a plastic “pipe” or tube that can be of varying length and is charged with a fire 
suppressant to 16 bar (approximately 232 psi) which will rupture at high temperatures to expel 
the suppressant.   
 
The HMR allow for the use of non-specification cylinders to be shipped as fire extinguishers—
including fire extinguishers for installation as part of a fire suppression system—provided they 
comply with all the applicable requirements of § 173.309(c)(1)-(6).  Based on the information 
you provided in your letter, it is the opinion of this Office that because the device in question is 
designed to rupture when exposed to fire, it is not considered a pressure vessel and therefore 
cannot be shipped under § 173.309(c).  However, you may consider applying for regulatory 
relief that authorizes your product as an alternative packaging under the terms and conditions of 
a special permit.  Special permits are granted on a case-by-case basis and the application 
procedures are specified in 49 CFR 107.705.  The Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety 
Administration’s Approvals and Permits Division may be reached at (202) 366-4535. 
  
I hope this information is helpful.  Please contact us if we can be of further assistance.  
 
Sincerely,  
 


 
 
T. Glenn Foster 
Chief, Regulatory Review and Reinvention Branch 
Standards and Rulemaking Division 
 





